
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Chris Curtis 
Service: Committee Services 
Direct line: 01784 446240 
E-mail: c.curtis@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 6 October 2020 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Planning Committee  
 
 

Date: 

 

Wednesday, 14 October 2020 

Time: 

 

Call Over Meeting - 6.00 pm 

 

The Call Over meeting will deal with administrative matters for the Planning Committee 
meeting. Please see guidance note on reverse 

 

Committee meeting – Immediately upon the conclusion of the Call Over Meeting 

 

Place: 

 

Video Conference via Skype for Business 

 
To the members of the Planning Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
T. Lagden (Chairman) 
M. Gibson (Vice-Chairman) 
C. Bateson 
S.A. Dunn 
N.J. Gething 
 

A.C. Harman 
H. Harvey 
N. Islam 
J. McIlroy 
R.J. Noble 
 

R.W. Sider BEM 
V. Siva 
R.A. Smith-Ainsley 
B.B. Spoor 
J. Vinson 
 

Councillors are reminded to notify Committee Services of any Gifts and Hospitality offered 
to you since the last Council meeting so that these may be entered in the Gifts and 
Hospitality Declaration book.  
 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

Call Over Meeting 

Guidance Note  

The Council will organise a meeting immediately prior to the Planning Committee meeting  
(a “Call Over”) which will deal with the following administrative matters for the Committee:  
 

 Ward councillor speaking 

 Public speakers 

 Declarations of interests 

 Late information 

 Withdrawals 

 Changes of condition  

 any other procedural issues which in the opinion of the Chairman ought to be dealt 
with in advance of the meeting. 

 

The Call-Over will be organised by Officers who will be present. Unless there are 
exceptional circumstances, the meeting will be held in the same room planned for the 
Committee.  The Chairman of the Planning Committee will preside at the Call-Over. The 
Call-Over will take place in public and Officers will advise the public of the proceedings at 
the meeting.  Public speaking at the Call-Over either in answer to the Chairman’s 
questions or otherwise will be at the sole discretion of the Chairman and his ruling on all 
administrative matters for the Committee will be final. 
 

Councillors should not seek to discuss the merits of a planning application or any other 
material aspect of an application during the Call-Over. 

Planning Committee meeting 

Start times of agenda items 

It is impossible to predict the start and finish time of any particular item on the agenda. It 
may happen on occasion that the Chairman will use his discretion to re-arrange the 
running order of the agenda, depending on the level of public interest on an item or the 
amount of public speaking that may need to take place.  This may mean that someone 
arranging to arrive later in order to only hear an item towards the middle or the end of the 
agenda, may miss that item altogether because it has been "brought forward" by the 
Chairman, or because the preceding items have been dealt with more speedily than 
anticipated.  Therefore, if you are anxious to make certain that you hear any particular item 
being debated by the Planning Committee, it is recommended that you arrange to attend 
from the start of the meeting.   
 
Background Papers 
For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the following 
documents are to be regarded as standard background papers in relation to all items: 

 Letters of representation from third parties 

 Consultation replies from outside bodies 

 Letters or statements from or on behalf of the applicant 
 



 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 5 - 12 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2020 as a 
correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors under the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, or contact with applicants/objectors under 
the Planning Code. 
 

 

 Planning Applications and other Development Control 
matters 

 

 To consider and determine the planning applications and other 
development control matters detailed in the reports listed below. 
 

 

4.   Planning Application No. 19/01360/FUL - Laleham Park Pavilion, 
Laleham, TW18 1SS 

13 - 38 

 Ward 
Laleham and Shepperton Green 
 
Proposal 
Erection of an amenity block and pavilion following demolition of the 
existing pavilion. 
 
Officer recommendation 
This planning application is recommended for approval, subject to 
conditions. 
 

 

5.   Planning Development Manager Performance Report 39 - 42 

 To note the report of the Planning Development Manager. 
 

 

6.   Planning Appeals Report 43 - 48 

 To note details of the Planning appeals submitted and decisions 
received between 10 August and 30 September 2020. 
 

 

7.   Urgent Items  

 To consider any items which the Chairman considers as urgent. 
 

 



 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Planning Committee 
16 September 2020 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor M. Gibson (Vice-Chairman) in the Chair 

 
Councillors: 
 

C. Bateson 

S.A. Dunn 

N.J. Gething 

A.C. Harman 

 

H. Harvey 

N. Islam 

J. McIlroy 

R.J. Noble 

 

V. Siva 

R.A. Smith-Ainsley 

B.B. Spoor 

J. Vinson 

Apologies: Apologies were received from  Councillor T. Lagden 

 
In Attendance: 
Councillors who are not members of the Committee, but attended the meeting 
and spoke on an application in or affecting their ward, are set out below in 
relation to the relevant application.  
 
 Councillor S. Buttar – Application No. 20/00565/FUL 
 
Also in attendance were: 
Councillors A. Brar, R. Chandler, I.T.E. Harvey and O. Rybinski 

  

193/20   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 August 2020 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 

194/20   Disclosures of Interest  
 

a) Disclosures of interest under the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
There were none. 
 
b) Declarations of interest under the Council’s Planning Code 
 
Councillors S. Dunn, N. Gething, M. Gibson, T. Harman, H. Harvey, N. Islam, 
R. Noble, R.W. Sider BEM, V. Siva, R. Smith-Ainsley, B. Spoor and J. Vinson 
had all received correspondence in relation to application no. 20/00123/OUT.  
Councillors S. Dunn, H. Harvey, R. Noble, R.W. Sider and B. Spoor had also 
visited the site.  All had maintained an impartial role and kept an open mind. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

Councillors N. Gething and N. Islam reported that they had received 
correspondence in relation to application no. 20/00565/FUL but had 
maintained an impartial role, had not expressed any views and had kept an 
open mind.  Councillor R. Noble had visited the site but had maintained an 
impartial role and kept an open mind. 
 

195/20   Planning Application No. 20/00123/OUT - Bugle Nurseries, Upper 
Halliford Road, Shepperton  
 

Description: 
This was an outline application with all matters reserved other than 'access' 
for the retention of existing dwelling and demolition of all other existing 
buildings and structures and the redevelopment of the site for up to 31 
dwellings along with the provision of public open space and other associated 
works for landscaping, parking areas, pedestrian, cycle and vehicular routes. 
 
The recommendation by Planning Officers was for refusal of the application. 
 
Additional Information: 
Kelly Walker, Senior Planning Officer, advised the Committee of the following 
information:  
  
In the report, reference to the planning history for application reference 
19/01022/OUT needed to be updated to refer to ‘an appeal having been 
lodged and we are awaiting a start letter’. 
 
-Paragraph 7.1 to be amended to read as follows: 
  
‘In 2017, the applicant made a formal request to the Council’s Strategic 
Planning section for the entire Bugle Nurseries site to be allocated for housing 
in the proposed new Local Plan (in response to the Council’s “Call for Sites” 
exercise). The applicant submitted two separate plans to illustrate the 
development potential of the site. The first plan showed a scheme similar to 
the 2018 refused application (18/00591/OUT) with the new housing and care 
home located towards the eastern side of the site. The second plan showed a 
larger scheme covering the whole of the Bugle Nurseries site comprising 116 
dwellings and a care home. The area is classified as ‘strongly performing’ in 
the Council’s Borough-wide Green Belt Assessment 2017 Stage 1 and 
therefore the site was considered unsuitable for development. As such the 
site has been was classified within the Council’s updated  2018 Strategic 
Land Available Assessment (SLAA) as ‘not developable’ (see Need for 
Housing below). It is relevant to note that the site has also been considered 
unsuitable for development in the Green Belt Assessment Stage 2 published 
in December 2018. The Assessment states that the Sub-Area 396 (which 
covers the site) plays a fundamental role with respect to the wider Green Belt 
Local Area, and its release would harm the performance and integrity of the 
wider strategic Green Belt.’ 
 
Paragraph 7.5 to be amended to refer to the latest Housing Delivery Test 
Action Plan approved September 2020 and the amended figure of 60% 

Page 6



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

 
In addition a letter had been received in response to the Planning Committee 
report from Montagu Evans which noted the following:- 
  
1 Sustainabilty 
-The site is sustainable as it is urban in character and is well related to 
established urban area, infrastructure and public transport.  
- The previously developed part of the site should be prioritised for release 
ahead of any undeveloped Green Belt land.  
-The site is clearly defined in 2 parts with the east as previously developed 
commercial site and the west undeveloped and forms part of wider area of 
strongly performing Green Belt. This is as set out in the background analysis 
of the site in the Stage 2 Green Belt Review and also the Local Plan Preferred 
Options Rejected Site Analysis 
-The proposal relates to the redevelopment of the already urbanised eastern 
area and improvement to open Green Belt to the west. 
  
2. Impact on openness of Green Belt 
-the report incorrectly assesses the impact on the openness of the Green Belt 
purely by comparison to the existing buildings on the site, which is an unduly 
narrow assessment and does not accord with case law or the National 
Planning Policy Guidance. 
-all aspects of the existing site which currently detract from the openness of 
the Green Belt must be considered, including existing buildings and their 
curtilages, boundary treatment and substantial areas of purpose built 
hardstanding with associated lighting and other paraphernalia, site 
topography, established trees and landscaping 
 
3. Permissible Degree of Impact 
The applicant considers that because the proposal would provide affordable 
housing that the relevant consideration is whether the scheme has a 
substantial impact on openness of the Green Belt, rather than the previous 
scheme which was assessed as ‘no greater impact’, and is therefore a lower 
threshold 
 
4. Reasonable conclusion 
- The current scheme is substantially smaller than the previous scheme, 
against the visual and spatial impact that the existing industrial activities have 
on the openness of the Green Belt, when taken as a whole Therefore this is a 
lower threshold (noted above) and together these factors means that the 
Committee is entitled to come to a view that the development is appropriate in 
the Green Belt. 
 
5. Titled balance 
This can be applied when development is considered to be appropriate or 
when Very Special Circumstances outweigh any harm to openness. 
Committee is entitled to conclude that the presumption in favour of granting 
planning permission applies on the basis that the harm would not be 
substantial and there are Very Special Circumstances which support the 
proposal in any event. 

Page 7



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

 
6. Very Special Circumstances (VSC) 
VSC are material considerations in weighing up the merit of the proposal 
against the degree of any perceived harm to the Green Belt. Committee 
should be aware that it would only need one material consideration of 
sufficient weight to support the application. The weight for providing housing 
and affordable housing is sufficient in its own right to outweigh any concerns 
regarding the impact on the Green Belt. Officers give weight to the removal of 
the industrial operations which give rise to noise and disturbance which adds 
to the VSC in favour of the development. 
- Highlight that case law has clarified that circumstances do not have to be 
uncommon or special and there are no restrictions on what might be regarded 
as such a consideration. 
-Contrary to this, Officers give no weight to remediation of contaminated land 
and public support for the application on the basis that they are not unique. 
 
Public Speaking:  
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, James 
Good spoke for the proposed development raising the following key points: 
 

 The scale of the proposals had been halved, the building heights reduced, 
and the development zone set back further from the frontage in response 
to comments made by the Planning Committee in relation to previous 
applications for this site 

 The development will only occur on existing brownfield land, which 
amounts to 20% of entire site 

 The development area was not open or green  

 Rear land would be improved with the removal of the waste transfer 
station,  re-landscaped and designated as public open space under a s106 
legal agreement, at no cost or liability to the council 

 The proposals do not make the site more urban 

 Regeneration, provision of public open space, community views and 
environmental clean-up have not been given sufficient weight  

 This will provide 31 homes, of which 15 will be affordable 
 
Debate: 
During the debate the following key issues were raised: 
 

 Proposal was inappropriate development and contrary to green belt policy 

 If approved, coalescence would occur 

 Green belt had been identified as ‘strongly performing’ in the local plan 
green belt review 

 Site was unsuitable for release from the green belt 

 The ‘tilted balance’ in NPPF does not apply to this green belt site 

 Substantial weight should be given to the fact that the development was 
inappropriate in the green belt 

 Very special circumstances only exist if clearly outweighed by the harm 

 Very special circumstances have not been proven 

Page 8



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

 If the owner was responsible, it could clear up the site irrespective of the 
application 

 Concern that the site had been identified as ‘strongly performing’ in the 
local plan green belt review, purposes 1 and 2 of NPPF not agreed 

 Council had not cleared up the site in the past 

 Significantly less impact compared with the previous applications 

 Development only taking place on previously developed land 

 Unique character 

 Complies with requirements on amenity space, parking, 

 Would assist in meeting the borough’s housing needs 

 No objection from SCC highways, Environment Agency, Tree Officer 

 No ecology objections 

 Overwhelming support for development 

 The Officer’s report was very detailed and balanced 

 Would provide open space 

 Longer views concerns (Eco Park) 

 Query over whether waste transfer site will be removed elsewhere 

 Development was overbearing 
 
A recorded vote was requested by Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley.  The voting 
was as follows: 
 

For refusal 
(7) 

Cllrs C. Bateson, H. Harvey, N. Islam, V. Siva, R.A. Smith-
Ainsley, B. Spoor, J. Vinson 

Against 
refusal (7) 

S. Dunn, N. Gething, M. Gibson, T. Harman, J. MciIlroy, R. 
Noble, R.W. Sider BEM 

Abstain (0)  

 
Councillor M. Gibson, as Chairman of the meeting, used her casting vote to 
vote against the officer’s recommendation to refuse the planning application. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor N. Gething and seconded by Councillor R. 
Noble and agreed by the Committee that the application was deferred to the 
next meeting of the Planning Committee to allow members time to draft a 
motion recommending approval of the application.  
 
Decision: 
The application was deferred to give committee members appropriate time to 
draft a suitable motion in support of the application. 
 

196/20   Planning Application No. 20/00565/FUL - Ruxbury Court, 
Cumberland Road, Ashford  
 

Description: 
The application sought alterations and extensions to Blocks B and C of 
Ruxbury Court, including alterations and extensions to the roof, to enable the 
creation of 3 x 1 bedroom units and 1 x 2 bedroom unit with associated 
parking and amenity space. 
 

Page 9



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

Additional Information: 
Kelly Walker, Senior Planning Officer, provided the following updates:  
 
The Council had received one additional letter of representation, which raised 
concerns that bats are regularly seen flying around the property and this 
should be investigated further (Officer note: the applicant had submitted a bat 
survey, which found no evidence of bats roosting at the site). 
 
The officer’s report should also refer to the height of Block C as being 
approximately 9.2 metres in height instead of 9 metres.  
 
Amended condition (page 67) 
8.) after “bird nesting boxes”, add “and bat boxes” 
 
Public Speaking:  
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, the 
Committee Manager read a statement submitted by Paul West on behalf of 
residents against the proposed development which raised the following key 
points: 
 

 Increased vehicle movements will cause noise and disturbance to local 
residents and additional pollution and light nuisance.   

 The reduced distance from the parking area to the flats will exacerbate 
the disturbance for residents in Block B. 

 Reduced direct light to Flat 6 to an unacceptable level 

 Reduced amenity area for Ruxbury Court residents 

 Overbearing and will lead to loss of privacy for No 10 and 12 
Cumberland Road 

 The proposed 3 storey development would be out of keeping with the 
neighbourhood 

 
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, Rob 
Nursey spoke for the proposed development raising the following key points: 
 

 Additional residential units will meet current technical standards 

 This will help to upgrade the existing site 

 Additional parking, new cycle store, amenity store and refuse stores 
meet the Council’s standards 

 Suggested electric charging points condition welcomed; an internal 
ASHP will be incorporated, making an improvement of over 34% 
compared to council requirement of 10%. 

 No roosting bats on site. 

 Meets Council’s core policies to provide additional homes within 
existing built up area. 

 Daylight factor will not be affected 

 Shadow study shows little effect on surrounding buildings 
 

Page 10



 
Planning Committee, 16 September 2020 - continued 

 

 
 

In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, 
Councillor S. Buttar spoke as Ward Councillor against the proposed 
development raising the following key points: 
 

 30 letters of objection had been received 

 Adverse impact on the street scene due to increase height and scale, 
increased dominance, contrary to policy EN1 

 
Debate: 
During the debate the following key issues were raised: 
 

 The ‘tilted balance’ weighs in favour of the development 

 Out of character with the surrounding area 

 Concerned by lack of bedrooms in windows (officer note: the rooms are 
served by skylights and therefore receive natural light) 

 Breaches the 45° guide (officer note: this is only in respect of a small part 
of one window) 

 Development is of a reasonable size 

 Loss of open space 

 Concern over inadequate parking 
 
Decision: 
The recommendation was overturned and the application was refused for the 
following reason: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of the scale and height, would fail to 
respect and make a positive contribution to the street scene and would be out 
of character with the appearance of the surrounding area, resulting in a 
development which would be detrimental to the street scene, contrary to 
policy EN1a) of the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 
 

197/20   Urgent Items  
 

There were none. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



PC

Camping Site

Play Area

Sports Pavilion

12.5m

Track

First Aid Station

Car Park

El Sub Sta

Pavilion Bungalow

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100024284. ¯Scale: 1:1,250

19/01360/FUL - Laleham Park Pavilion, Laleham Park, Thames Side, Laleham,
Staines-upon-Thames. TW18 1SS

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee                             

14 October 2020 

 
 

Application Nos. 19/01360/FUL 

Site Address Laleham Park Pavilion, Laleham Park, Thames Side, Laleham, Staines-
upon-Thames, TW18 1SS 

Proposal Erection of an amenity block and pavilion following demolition of existing 
pavilion. 

Applicant Spelthorne Borough Council, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames, 
TW18 1XB 

Ward Laleham & Shepperton Green 

Call in details N/A 

Case Officer Matthew Churchill  

Application Dates 
Valid: 06.11.2019 Expiry: 01.01.2020 

Target: Extension of 
time agreed 

Executive 
Summary 

This planning application is proposing the erection of a new pavilion 
building and amenity block, which would be constructed following the 
demolition of the existing pavilion buildings.  The application site is 
located within Laleham Park, which is a ‘Spelthorne Asset’ owned by the 
Council.  The Council is also the applicant.    
 
The existing pavilion buildings are both single storey and are accessed 
from Thames Side to the west.  The site consists of a larger pavilion 
building, which contains showering and changing facilities, a function 
room and a small office, as well as an area of residential accommodation, 
which includes 2 bedrooms.  The smaller pavilion building contains toilet 
facilities, a kiosk, and storage space.  The buildings are both served by 
the Laleham Park car park, and Laleham Park surrounds the north, south 
and east of the pavilion.  The River Thames runs approximately 130 
metres to the west of the site, which is a Site of Nature Conservation 
Importance.   
 
The existing buildings have their windows ‘boarded up’ and foliage 
overgrowing the southern end of the main pavilion building.  It is 
proposed that both of the existing buildings would be demolished. 
 
Following demolition, the application proposes the construction of 2 new 
pavilion buildings.  This would comprise a larger main pavilion building 
that would contain showering and changing facilities as well as a plant 
room.  A smaller amenity block is also proposed that would contain toilet 
facilities as well as storage space.  
 
The applicant has stated that if granted planning permission, the 

Page 15



 
 

development would take place over two stages, with the smaller amenity 
block being constructed first, and the larger main pavilion building being 
constructed in a second, later phase. 
 
The application site is situated within the Green Belt.  The NPPF states 
that Local Planning Authorities should regard the construction of any new 
buildings in the Green Belt as inappropriate development.  However, the 
NPPF also lists a number of exemptions to inappropriate development, 
including the provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and 
recreation, providing that the openness of the Green Belt is preserved 
and the development does not conflict with the reasons for including the 
land within the Green Belt.   
 
The application proposes the provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor 
sport and recreation, in the form of changing rooms and toilet facilities for 
Laleham Park.  The footprint of buildings at the site would be reduced by 
approximately 1m² in comparison to the existing. The proposal is 
considered to preserve the openness of the Green Belt and the buildings 
construction is not considered to conflict with the purposes of including 
the land within the Green Belt.  The development is therefore considered 
to constitute an exemption to inappropriate development as listed in the 
NPPF and would have an acceptable impact upon the Green Belt and its 
openness.     
 
The application site is also located within the 1 in 20 year flood zone 
(Flood Zone 3b), which is the area the highest level of flood risk.  The 
applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment which demonstrates 
that the overall built footprint on the site would be reduced.  The 
Environment Agency is also satisfied that whilst the finished floor levels 
would be below flooding levels, as the development is proposing a ‘water 
compatible’ use it would be acceptable in flooding terms. 
 
The proposal is also considered to have an acceptable impact upon the 
character of the area, the amenity of surrounding properties, biodiversity 
and parking provision.  It would also represent a visual improvement to 
the existing community facility.  The proposal is therefore considered to 
be in adherence to local and national planning policies and guidance.  
 

Recommended 
Decision 

 

This application is recommended for approval, subject to conditions 

  

 MAIN REPORT 

1. Development Plan 

1.1 The following policies in the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies 
Development Plan Document (CS&P DPD) 2009 are considered relevant to 
this proposal: 

➢ SP1 - Location of Development  

Page 16



 
 

➢ LO1 - Flooding  

➢ CO1 – Providing Community Facilities 

➢ SP6 - Maintaining and Improving the Environment  

➢ EN1 - Design of New Development 

➢ EN7 – Tree Protection 

➢ EN8 – Protecting and Improving the Landscape and Biodiversity 

➢ CC2 - Sustainable Travel  

➢ CC3 - Parking Provision 

➢ Saved Policy GB1 – Development Proposals within the Green Belt 

 

1.2 Also relevant is the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 2019 

 

2. Relevant Planning History 

The Council holds records of two previous planning applications being 
determined at the site as outlined below: 
 

STAINES/FUL/P1164/2 Sports pavilion. Grant 
Unconditional 
12.07.1954 

STAINES/OUT/P3414/2 The erection of a Sewage 
Ejector Station. 

Grant 
Unconditional 
09.01.1961 

 
3. Description of Current Proposal 

 
3.1 The application site is occupied by two single storey pavilion buildings, which 

contain ‘boarded up’ windows and foliage overgrowing the southern end of 
the main building.   
 

3.2 The larger pavilion building incorporates changing and showering facilities, as 
well as a function room.  Residential accommodation is also contained in the 
southern section of the main pavilion, which comprises two bedrooms, a 
lounge, a kitchen, and a bathroom.  The second smaller pavilion building is 
located to the west of the main building and contains a kiosk, a toilet and 
storage facilities. 
 

3.3 The site is accessed from Thames Side from the west and is served by the 
Laleham Park car park.  The River Thames also runs approximately 130 
metres to the west of the Pavilion buildings, which is a Site of Nature 
Conservation Importance.  Laleham Park surrounds the north, south and east 
of the existing buildings. 
 

3.4 The application is proposing the construction of two new pavilion buildings, 
which would be constructed following the demolition of the existing buildings.  
The scheme proposes a larger main pavilion block, which would contain 
shower and changing facilities as well as a plant room.  The application also 

Page 17



 
 

proposes a smaller amenity building that would be situated between the main 
building and the car park, which would contain toilet and storage facilities.  
 

3.5 The applicant has stated that the buildings would be constructed over two 
phases, with the amenity block being constructed first and the main pavilion 
building being constructed in a later second phase.    
 

4. Consultations 

 

5. Public Consultation 

The Council has consulted the occupiers of 5 neighbouring sites.  The 
application was also re-advertised to the occupiers of neighbouring properties 
as the applicant submitted revised plans on 10 August 2020. The Local 
Planning Authority has not received any letters of representation. 
 

6. Planning Issues 

➢ The Impact upon the Green Belt and its openness 

➢ Flooding 

➢ Character and Appearance 

➢ Amenity 

➢ Highways 

➢ Biodiversity  

 

7. Planning Considerations 

 
Green Belt 
 

7.1 The NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt Policy is to prevent 
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open.  If further states that the 

Consultee Comment 

County Highway Authority  No objections. 
 

Environmental Health (Contamination) Requests a condition and two 
informatives. 

Environment Agency 
 

No objections, subject to conditions. 

Cadent (Formerly National Grid) No comments received. 
 

Surrey Wildlife Trust  No objections. 
 

Tree Officer 
 

No objections subject to conditions.  

Runnymede Borough Council 
 

No objections. 

UK Power Networks (Electricity) No comments received. 
 

Page 18



 
 

Green Belt serves the five purposes of a) checking the unrestricted sprawl of 
large built up areas b) preventing neighbouring towns from merging into one 
another c) assisting in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment d) to 
preserve the setting and special character of historic towns & e) assisting 
urban regeneration by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban 
land.   
 

7.2 The NPPF also states that Local Planning Authorities should regard the 
construction of new buildings as inappropriate development in the Green Belt.  
It further advises that inappropriate development will by definition cause harm 
to the Green Belt and its openness and must not be approved except in ‘very 
special circumstances’, which must outweigh the harm to the Green Belt any 
other harm. 
 

7.3 The NPPF further lists, at para 145, a number of exceptions to inappropriate 
development, including at b), the provision of appropriate facilities in 
connection with the use of the existing land for outdoor sport and outdoor 
recreation, so long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt 
and does not conflict with the purposes of including the land within the Green 
Belt.  The Local Planning Authority (LPA) must carefully consider whether the 
proposal would constitute an exemption to inappropriate development. 
 

7.4 The Council’s Saved Local Plan Policy GB1 is similar to the Green Belt policy 
set out in the NPPF, but it should be noted that policy GB1 was saved from 
the 2001 Local Plan and therefore pre-dated the current NPPF. Although 
there is a degree of consistency with the NPPF, policy GB1 does not allow for 
any development unless it is one of a number of acceptable uses set out in 
the policy and also maintains the openness of the Green Belt. This differs 
from the more recent national policy which allows exceptions to this when the 
identified harm to the Green Belt is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations that constitute very special circumstances. Because of this 
inconsistency with the NPPF, the impact of the development on the Green 
Belt should be considered primarily against the policies of the NPPF.  
 

7.5 The existing larger pavilion building incorporates shower and changing 
facilities, an office and function room, as well as residential accommodation in 
the southern section of the building.  The smaller amenity building 
incorporates a kiosk, toilet facilities and storage space.  The application 
proposes that both buildings would be demolished. 

 
7.6 In terms of the exemption set out in para 145 b) of the NPPF, it is proposed 

that 2 new pavilion buildings would then be constructed.  The larger pavilion 
building would contain showering and changing facilities, as well as an 
associated plant room.  The smaller amenity block would contain toilet 
facilities as well as storage space.  These facilities are considered to 
constitute appropriate facilities for outdoor sport and recreation.   
 

7.7 In respect of preserving openness, the existing buildings have an external 
footprint of approximately 296m² and the proposed buildings would not extend 
beyond the existing built footprint.  Indeed, the proposed buildings would have 
a slightly smaller footprint measuring 295m².  The existing main pavilion 
building also measures a height of 5.9 metres, whereas the proposed main 

Page 19



 
 

pavilion building would measure a height of 5.7 metres resulting in a 0.2 
metre height reduction.   
 

7.8 It is acknowledged that the proposed pavilion buildings would contain gable 
roofs that would have a higher overall volume than the roofs over the current 
buildings.  However, as the proposed buildings would not extend beyond the 
existing built footprint, and as the main building would be lesser in height than 
the existing main pavilion building, on planning balance the proposal is 
considered to preserve the openness of Laleham Park.  It is also not 
considered that the proposal would conflict with the purposes of including the 
land within the Green Belt.  The proposed buildings are therefore considered 
to constitute an exemption to inappropriate development under para 145 b) of 
the NPPF.  
 

7.9 The buildings in spatial and visual terms, preserve the openness of the Green 
Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it.    The 
proposal is therefore viewed to meet the Green Belt objectives set out in the 
NPPF as the development is considered to have an acceptable impact upon 
the Green Belt and its openness.   

 
Flooding 
 

7.10 The application site is located in the 1 in 20 year flood event area (Flood Zone 
3b), which is the highest level of flood risk.  Policy LO1 part d), of the CS&P 
DPD states that the Council will seek to reduce flood risk and its adverse 
effects on people and property in Spelthorne by maintaining the effectiveness 
of the more frequently flooded area (Zone 3b) of the flood plain to both store 
water and allow the movement of fast flowing water, by not permitting any 
additional development including extensions.   
 

7.11 The NPPF states that inappropriate in development in areas of risk of flooding 
should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk.  
The NPPF further states that where development is necessary in such areas, 
the development should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood 
risk elsewhere.   
 

7.12 The LPA has calculated that the existing pavilion building and amenity block 
have an external footprint of approximately 296m².  The proposed pavilion 
building and amenity block would have an external footprint of approximately 
295m².  The external footprint of the proposed buildings would therefore be 
1m² less than the existing buildings.  As such, the proposal is not considered 
to constitute additional development in comparison to the existing built 
footprint.   
 

7.13 As the application site is located within Flood Zone 3b, the LPA consulted the 
Environment Agency (EA).  The EA initially objected to the proposal as the 
information submitted in the applicant’s Floor Risk Assessment (FRA) was 
found to be unacceptable.  The EA also had concerns as the applicant had 
not shown the internal layout of the larger pavilion building, and as such the 
EA could not assess whether the proposed use of the building would be 
appropriate for Flood Zone 3b. 
 

Page 20



 
 

7.14 The applicant submitted a revised floor plan on 10 August 2020, which 
confirmed that the main pavilion building would contain changing rooms and a 
plant room.  The revised floor plans also confirmed that the amenity block 
would contain toilet and storage facilities.  The Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPG) states that essential outdoor sport and recreation facilities such as 
changing rooms constitute ‘water compatible’ uses, which are appropriate 
uses in Flood Zone 3b.  The Council’s SPD on Flooding (July 2012) also lists 
amenity open space, including changing rooms as ‘water compatible’ uses. 
 

7.15 The EA further noted that the finished floor levels in the proposed pavilion 
would be below the flood levels, although the EA considered that for a ‘water 
compatible’ use this would be acceptable given that there would be an overall 
reduction in built footprint at the site.  However, the EA commented that it 
would wish to be consulted if the building were to be used for any other use 
than has been shown in the plans.  It must also be accepted that the building 
will flood in a major flood event as the floor levels are below the flooding 
levels.   
 

7.16 The NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should consider whether 
otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the 
use of planning conditions.  The NPPF further states that conditions should be 
kept to a minimum and should only be imposed where they meet the six tests 
of being necessary, relevant to planning and the development permitted, 
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.   
 

7.17 Given the EA’s request to be consulted on any future uses of the building, and 
as the floor levels would be below the flooding levels and the building would 
flood during in a major flood event, it is recommended that a condition is 
attached to the decision notice, which would result in any future uses other 
than those shown on the submitted plans to require the written agreement of 
the LPA.  It is considered that such a condition would meet the conditions 
tests set out in the NPPF and would be reasonable given the flooding 
constraints of the site. 
 

7.18 Whilst the structure would be floodable, given that there would be an overall 
reduction in footprint it is considered that the proposal would maintain the 
effectiveness of the flood zone to both store water and allow the movement 
and flow of water during a major flood event as required by the objectives of 
Policy LO1.  The development would also have an acceptable impact upon 
flooding elsewhere and whilst it will flood in a major flood event, given that 
proposed use is ‘water compatible’, the proposal is also considered to be in 
accordance with the objectives of the NPPF.             
 

7.19 The application is proposing the redevelopment of an existing building in 
Flood Zone 3b.  The LPA does not normally grant planning permission for 
development in this flood zone including residential extensions.  However, in 
this instance the proposal would reduce the overall built footprint on the site.  
The building would also be used in a ‘water compatible’ use.  The proposal is 
therefore considered to be in accordance with the objectives of the NPPF and 
policy LO1 and is considered to be acceptable in flooding terms. 
 
Character and Appearance  

Page 21



 
 

 
7.20 Policy EN1 of the CS&P DPD states that the Council will require a high 

standard in the design and layout of new development.  The policy further 
states that proposals for new development should demonstrate that they will 
make a positive contribution to the street scene and character of the area in 
which they would be situated, paying due regard to the scale, height, 
proportions, building lines, layout, materials and other characteristics of 
adjoining buildings and land.   
 

7.21 The NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that developments 
function well and add to the overall quality of an area, are visually attractive 
as a result of good architecture, layout and landscaping, and are sympathetic 
to the local character and history including the surrounding built environment, 
whilst not preventing appropriate innovation or change. 
 

7.22 It is considered that the proposed pavilion building and amenity block would 
have an acceptable impact upon the character of the area, particularly when 
viewed in the context of the existing buildings at the site.  The proposed 
buildings would occupy a similar footprint to the existing pavilion buildings.  
The gable roof would also be 0.2 metres lower than the ridge over the existing 
buildings.  The principle of pavilion buildings has already been established at 
the site and the overall scale and design of the buildings is considered to 
have an acceptable visual impact upon the surrounding locality. 
 

7.23 The application site is surrounded by Laleham Park to the north, south and 
east, and the Laleham Camping Ground located to the north of the site.  The 
area surrounding the site is therefore open in character and the pavilion 
buildings would be visible from significant distances.  However, the overall 
design and scale of the buildings is considered to be acceptable, particularly 
in the context of the existing pavilion buildings.   
 

7.24 The proposal is therefore considered to make a positive contribution to the 
street scene and character of the area in which it would be situated, in 
accordance with the objectives of policy EN1.  The proposal is also 
considered to be sympathetic to the surrounding landscape in accordance of 
the objectives of the NPPF.  The pavilion buildings are therefore considered 
to be acceptable in design terms. 
 
Amenity 
 

7.25 Policy EN1 of the CS&P DPD states that proposals for new development 
should demonstrate that they will achieve a satisfactory relationship to 
adjoining properties, avoiding significant harmful impacts in terms of loss of 
light, privacy, daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect due to bulk proximity 
or outlook.  
  

7.26 The pavilion building and amenity block would be a considerable distance 
from the nearest residential dwelling.  The proposal is therefore considered to 
have an acceptable impact upon the amenity of all surrounding properties. 
 
Highways Impacts & Parking 
 

Page 22



 
 

7.27 Policy CC2 of the CS&P DPD states that the Council will seek more 
sustainable travel patterns by only permitting traffic generating development 
where it can be made compatible with transport infrastructure in the area, 
taking into account the cumulative impacts, access and egress to the public 
highway and highway safety.  Policy CC3 also states that appropriate 
provision to be made for off-street parking in accordance with the Council’s 
parking standards. 
 

7.28 The NPPF also states that applications should only be refused on highway 
grounds where there would be an unacceptable impact upon highway safety 
or if the residual impacts upon the road network would be severe. 
 

7.29 There is an existing car park serving Laleham Park situated to the west of the 
site.  As this car park also served the existing pavilion buildings, which were in 
a similar use, there is not considered to be a greater impact upon the 
highway.  The level of off-street parking provision is also considered to be 
acceptable. 
 

7.30 The LPA also consulted the County Highway Authority (CHA), which having 
assessed the likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and 
parking provision, were satisfied that the development with not have a 
material impact upon the safety or operation of the highway.  The CHA noted 
that the proposal relates to the re-provision of existing facilities and as such it 
is unlikely that the development would be any material impact upon the Trip 
Generation of the Site.   
 

7.31 The proposal is therefore considered to provide an acceptable level of parking 
provision and would have a satisfactory impact upon the highway in 
accordance with the objectives of policy CC2, policy CC3 and the NPPF in 
highway terms. 
 
Community Recreation Facility  
 

7.32 Policy CO1 states that the Council will seek to ensure that community 
facilities are provided to meet local needs by supporting improvements to 
existing facilities to enable them to adapt to changing needs. 
 

7.33 The NPPF states that existing open space, sports and recreational buildings 
and land should not be built on unless the loss resulting from the proposed 
development would be replaced by equivalent or better provision in terms of 
quality and suitable location. 
 

7.34 The application proposes the replacement of the existing pavilion facilities,  
with a replacement community  facility that would be in a similar use to the 
existing building.  The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance 
with policy CO1 and the NPPF in this regard. 
 
Biodiversity 
 

7.35 Policy EN8 of the CS&P DPD states that the Council will seek to protect 
improve the landscape and biodiversity in the borough by amongst other 

Page 23



 
 

things, refusing permission where development would have a significant 
impact on the landscape or features of nature conservation value. 
  

7.36 The NPPF states that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance 
the natural local environment by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes 
and sites of biodiversity. 
 

7.37 The proposed pavilion buildings would be situated approximately 130 metres 
from the River Thames, which is a Site of Nature Conservation Importance.  
The LPA therefore consulted the consulted the Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT).    
 

7.38 The applicant submitted a Bat Survey Report, which states that bats have 
been spotted emerging from the larger pavilion building.  The SWT therefore 
commented that the applicant should be advised of the need for the applicant 
to obtain a European Protected Species Licence from Natural England.   
 

7.39 The SWT also provided further advice on artificial lighting, roof membranes 
and the adoption of a precautionary approach when undertaking the works.  It 
is recommended that the SWT’s guidance is attached to the decision notice 
as an informative.   
 

7.40 The LPA also considers that it reasonable to impose a condition requiring the 
applicant to submit details of ecological mitigation measures such as bird and 
bat boxes, and for this to be agreed prior to first use/occupation of the 
building.  Such a condition is considered to meet the six tests set out in the 
NPPF and is considered to be in accordance with the objectives of Policy 
EN8. 
 
Other Matters 
 

7.41 The applicant’s Design and Access Statement states that the building has 
been designed to be future proof, particularly in terms of energy efficiency and 
carbon emissions, and that the building has been designed to reduce energy 
use.  However, in accordance with policy CC1, the Local Planning Authority 
considers it necessary to impose a condition on the decision notice, which 
requires the applicant to submit a report, which provides details as to how 
10% of the energy requirements generated by the development as a whole 
will be achieved utilising renewable energy methods.   
 

7.42 It was evident during the site visit that a number of trees were located in close 
proximity to the existing pavilion buildings, which could be impacted as a 
result of the works.  As a result the Council’s Tree Officer was notified and 
undertook a site visit.  The Tree Officer raised no objections, but requested 
that a condition was imposed upon the decision notice, which requires the 
applicant to submit an Arboricultural Method Statement before works 
commence.    
  

7.43 The existing pavilion adjoins an electricity substation, which is enclosed by 
brickwork.  This would be retained following construction of the new buildings.  
The LPA consulted both UK Power Networks and the National Grid (Cadent).  
At the time or writing, no comments have been received from either 
consultee.  It is therefore recommended that an informative is attached to the 

Page 24



 
 

decision notice, advising the applicant to contact both UK Power Networks 
and the National Grid (Cadent) before works commence.  The applicant’s 
attention will also be drawn to the Party Wall Act.   
 

7.44 The neighbouring borough of Runnymede is situated to the west of the site on 
the opposite side of the River Thames.  The LPA consulted Runnymede 
Borough Council who raised no objection. 
 
Equalities Act 2010 
 

7.45 This planning application has been considered in light of the Equality Act 
2010 and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is 
required to have due regard to: 
 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
The question in every case is whether the decision maker has in substance 
had due regard to the relevant statutory need, to see whether the duty has 
been performed. 
 
The Council’s obligation is to have due regard to the need to achieve these 
goals in making its decisions. Due regard means to have such regard as is 
appropriate in all the circumstances.  The application proposes a toilet facility 
for disabled users and is considered to be accessible.  The Laleham Park car 
park also contains a number of disabled car parking spaces. 
 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 

7.46 This planning application has been considered against the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 
 

7.47 Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made 
representations) have the right to a fair hearing and to this end full 
consideration will be given to their comments. 
 

7.48 Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and 
family life and a right to the protection of property, i.e. peaceful enjoyment of 
one's possessions which could include a person's home, and other land and 
business assets. 
 

7.49 In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Spelthorne Local Plan 
and the NPPF and all material planning considerations, Officers have 
concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon the applicant/ objectors/ 
residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law 

Page 25



 
 

and is justified in the public interest.  Any restriction of these rights posed by 
the approval of the application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the 
wider benefits of such a decision, is based upon the merits of the proposal, 
and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
Finance Considerations 
 

7.50 Under S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, Local Planning Authorities 
are now required to ensure that potential financial benefits of certain 
development proposals are made public when a Local Planning Authority is 
considering whether or not to grant planning permission for planning 
applications which are being determined by the Council’s Planning 
Committee. A financial benefit must be recorded regardless of whether it is 
material to the Local Planning Authority’s decision on a planning application, 
but planning officers are required to indicate their opinion as to whether the 
benefit is material to the application or not.  
 

7.51 In consideration of S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, the proposal 
is not CIL liable development.  It is possible that business rates may be 
applicable to both buildings.  However, the exact amount is unknown at this 
stage and would be dependent upon a valuation from the Valuation Office 
Agency 
 

8. Conclusions 
 
8.1 For the reasons outlined in this report, it is considered that the proposed 

pavilion buildings would represent an exemption to inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt, and would have an acceptable impact upon the Green Belt 
and its openness.  The site is also located in the 1 in 20 year flood event area 
(Flood Zone 3b), which is the highest level of flood risk.  However, the 
development would represent a reduction in the overall built footprint at the 
site, and the buildings would be in a water compatible use.   
 

8.2 The proposed buildings are also considered to have an acceptable impact 
upon the character of the area, the amenity of surrounding properties and 
biodiversity.  The development would also provide an acceptable facility for 
the surrounding community.  The proposal is therefore considered to be in 
accordance with the objectives of policies EN1, CC1, CC2, CC3 EN8 and 
LO1 and the proposal is recommended for approval subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
9. Recommendation 

To GRANT planning permission subject to following conditions: 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.  

 
Reason: This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  

 

Page 26



 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 1338 PL 003 Rev A, 1338 PL 004 Rev A,  
1338 PL 005 Rev A, 1338 PL 021 Rev A (Received 10.03.2020), 1338 PL 001 
Rev A, 1338 PL 002 Rev B (Received 17.03.2020) 1338 PL 024 Rev B, 1338 
PL 022 Rev D, 1338 PL 023 Rev D (Received 15.06.2020), 1338 PL 010 Rev 
F, 1338 PL 020 Rev F (Received 10.08.2020) 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.  
 

3 No development above damp course level shall take place until details of the 
materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building(s) are submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then 
be constructed in accordance with the approved materials and detailing. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
appearance of the development and the visual amenities and character of the 
locality in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne Borough 
Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of development (excluding demolition of the 
existing buildings) a survey report detailing ground conditions of the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Where made ground or contamination is encountered a scheme to 
investigate, assess and remediate contamination risks shall be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority, and shall be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed details and timetable.  

 
Reason: To protect the amenities of future residents and the environment 
from the effects of potentially harmful substances.  
 

5 No development shall commence until an Arboricultural Method Statement in 
accordance with BS5837: 2012 shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval and agreed in writing.  Works to the boundary wall will 
then be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 
 Reason: To prevent damage to the trees in the interest of the visual amenities 

of the area, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the Spelthorne 
Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 

 
6  Following construction of any groundwork and foundations, no construction of 

development above damp course level shall take place until a report is 
submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority which includes 
details and drawings demonstrating how 10% of the energy requirements 
generated by the development as a whole will be achieved utilising renewable 
energy methods and showing in detail the estimated sizing of each of the 
contributing technologies to the overall percentage.  The detailed report shall 
identify how renewable energy, passive energy and efficiency measures will 
be generated and utilised for each of the proposed buildings to meet 
collectively the requirement for the scheme.  The agreed measures shall be 
implemented with the construction of each building and thereafter retained. 

 

Page 27



 
 

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and complies with 
Policy SP7 and CC1 of the Spelthorne Development Plan Core Strategy and 
Policies DPD. 

 
7  Prior to the first use or occupation of the building’s hereby approved, a 

strategy shall be submitted and agreed with the Local Planning Authority, 
which details ecological mitigation measures, including but not limited to the 
provision of bird boxes and roosting opportunities for bats.  The mitigation 
measures shall thereafter be retained to the agreed details unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity to ensure the development will not 
have an adverse impact upon protected species. 

 
8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order) there shall be no changes to the room uses shown in 
plan 1338 PL 020 Rev F (Received 10.08.2020) namely, changing room & 
showers, plant room, storage & toilet facilities, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 Reason: To ensure that the development remains in a water compatible use 

due to the finished floor levels being below flooding levels. 
 
9 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood 

risk assessment (FRA) ref 72257R4; Status FINAL; Updated 2020-06-11, 
produced by FloodSmart Pro, Drawing titled ‘Proposed Ground Floor Plan’ 
dated 05/08/2020, ref: 1338 PL 020 rev: F and the following mitigation 
measures it details:  
- Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 12.59mAOD  

- Resistance and resilience measures recommended should be incorporated 
in the building including:  
- Raising of electrical sockets, heating systems and utility meters above the 
estimated 1% AEP, plus an appropriate allowance for climate change, flood 
level  

- Non-return flap valves on any existing foul and surface water outfalls  

- Silification primers and cementitious waterproof grouts and mortars to 
protect internal walls from damp and any water ingress  

- Hard flooring at ground floor level  

- Sports equipment which may be susceptible to water damage should be 
stored at higher levels  
- The footprint of the new build should be less than that of the existing building  

 
These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. 
The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter 
throughout the lifetime of the development. 

 
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future 
users. To reduce the risk of flooding elsewhere. To ensure the structural 
integrity of the proposed building utilities. This is supported by Policy LO1 

Page 28



 
 

Flooding in the Spelthorne Core Strategy and paragraph 163 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

  
 

INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT 

1 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

   Working in a positive/proactive manner 
 In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in 

a positive and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of the 
NPPF.  This included the following:- 
a) Provided pre-application advice to seek to resolve problems 
before the application was submitted and to foster the delivery of 
sustainable development. 
b) Provided feedback through the validation process including 
information on the website, to correct identified problems to ensure  
c) Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the 
process to advise progress, timescales or recommendation. 

  
2 Access by the Fire Brigade 

Notice of the provisions of Section 20 of the Surrey County Council Act 
1985 is hereby endorsed on this planning permission. Copies of the 
Section may be obtained from the Council Offices or from County Hall. 
Section 20 of this Act requires that when a building is erected or 
extended, proper provision must be made for the Fire Brigade to have 
means of access to the building or to any neighbouring buildings. 
There are also requirements relating to access and facilities for the fire 
service contained in Part B of the Building Regulations 2000 (as 
amended). 

 
3 Historically land across Spelthorne has been subjected to extensive 

mineral extraction, with subsequent infilling of the resultant voids. 
Excavations during some development works have encountered fill 
materials where records have not previously identified a history of 
extraction / infilling.  
To confirm ground conditions at the application site minimum 
requirements of the survey are as follows:  

 The excavation of 2 -3 trial holes to a depth of 1.00mbgl. This can be 
done by hand or with a small digger  

 At least one location beneath the footprint of the proposed dwelling 
and another one to two holes within the proposed rear garden and other 
associated landscaped areas.  

 an inspection to be made of the ground conditions and confirm the 
absence or otherwise or any made ground / fill materials at this property, 
their thickness and extent.  

 Photographs shall be taken of each exploratory position including all 
associated soil arisings (soils excavated and placed to the side of the 
hole as works progress).  

 Where different soil horizons are encountered (i.e. topsoil to 0.40mbgl 
overlying a layer of sandy gravel to 0.60mbgl with stiff clay to the base 
of the excavation (c.1.00mbgl)) appropriate written logs will be required 

Page 29



 
 

to detail the depths, thickness and description of the materials 
encountered.  

 a scale plan (such as the site layout plan) indicating the location of the 
exploratory positions in relation to the proposed property and a 
photograph taken across  

 
4 The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirements of the Party Wall 

Etc. Act 1996 in relation to work close to a neighbour's 
building/boundary. 

 
5 Due to the presence of National Grid and UK Power Networks apparatus 

in proximity to the specified area, the applicant should contact Cadent 
and UK Power Networks before any works are carried out to ensure 
Nation Grid and UK Power Networks apparatus is not affected by any of 
the proposed works. Email: plantprotection@cadentgas.com 
Telephone: 0800 688 588 UK Power Networks: 0800 31 63 105  

      
Affected Apparatus  
The National Grid and UK Power Networks apparatus that has been 
identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is: Electricity 
Substation 

 
6 The applicant is advised of the need to Either - obtain a European 

Protected Species (EPS) licence from Natural England following the 
receipt of planning permission and prior to any works which may affect 
bats commencing and to;  
- Undertake all the actions which will be detailed in the Method 
Statement which will be required to accompany the licence application, 
based on the mitigation, compensation and enhancement actions 
presented within section 7 of the above referenced Bat Survey Report.  

- Or – under take works under the brief of a Registered Consultant who 
holds a Low Impact Class Licence for bats.  

 
7 The applicant is advised that a precautionary approach to works is 

implemented. Features identified as suitable for roosting bats should 
be dismantled by hand, under the supervision of a suitably qualified 
ecologist and site workers should be made aware of bat legislation. If 
any bats are found on site all works should cease immediately and 
advice sought from Natural England. 

 
8 The applicant should ensure that the proposed development will result 

in no net increase in external artificial lighting. In order to comply with 
above European Protected Species Legislation, any external lighting 
installed on this development should comply with the recommendations 
of the Bat Conservation Trusts’ document entitled “Bats and Lighting in 
the UK – Bats and The Built Environment Series”. 

  
9 Breathable roofing membranes can cause entanglement and mortality 

of bats in roofs.  Therefore non-breathable bituminous membrane 
should be used, as opposed to breathable membrane, in line with the 
recommendations made in section 7 of the applicants Bat Survey 
Report.  

Page 30



 
 

 
10 The developer should take action to ensure that development activities 

such as vegetation or site clearance are timed to avoid the bird nest 
season of early March to August inclusive. 

 
 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Existing Site Plan 
 

 
 
Existing Elevations 
 

 
 

Page 33



 
 
 
 
Existing Floor Plans 
 

 
 

Page 34



Proposed Site Plan 

 
 
Proposed Elevations 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Proposed Floor Plans  
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee 

14 October 2020 

 

Title Development Management Performance 

 
 
1.1 Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) are measured on their performance 

based on the % of planning applications they determine within 8 or 13 
weeks (or within an extension of time agreed with the applicant).  For 
several years the targets have been as follows: 

 
Majors – 60% within 13 weeks 
Minors – 65% within 8 weeks 
Others – 80% within 8 weeks 
 
Major development is defined as: 

 
More than 10 residential units, dwellings on a site with an area of 0.5 
hectares or more, 1,000 sq. m or more of new commercial floorspace 
or sites with an area of more than 1 hectare. 

 
 Minor development is defined as: 
 

Up to 9 residential units, up to 999 sq. m of new floorspace, changes of 
use 

 
Others – mainly householder schemes 

 
1.2 In the past six months (January to June 2020) – Spelthorne met all 

three performance measures as follows: 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



 
Table 1 Planning DM Performance January – June 2020 
 

Majors  Minors  Others 
 

 

Total On 
Target 

% on 
Target 

(i.e. 
60%)  

Govt. 
Target 

Total On 
Target 

% on 
Target 

(i.e. 
65%) 

 

Govt. 
Target 

Total On 
Target 

% on 
Target 

(i.e. 80%) 
 

Govt. 
Target 

9 9 100 60% 79 68 86% 65% 234 219 94% 
 

80% 
 

 

P
age 40



 
1.3 The Government has recently also been assessing LPAs in terms of 

planning performance on the following criteria: 
 

• The speed of determining applications for major development  
 

• The quality of decisions made by the authority on applications for 
major development;  

 

• The speed of determining applications for non-major 
development;  

 

• The quality of decisions made by the authority on applications for 
non-major development.  

 
1.4 With just a few minor exceptions, non-major equates to a combination 

of the “minor” and “other” categories referred to above.   
 
1.5 The quality measurement is the number of appeals allowed as a 

percentage of the total number of applications received in the category.  
The threshold for quality on both categories is 10% and the lower the 
figure, the better the performance.  The threshold for speed is 60% 
(majors) and 70% (non-majors) and the higher the figure, the better 
the performance. 

 
1.6 The threshold (in terms of %) and assessment periods for 2018 and 

2019 were reported to the Planning Committee on 5 February 2020 
and all four targets were met by Spelthorne.  If the LPA does not meet 
these thresholds, the LPA is at risk of “designation” by the Secretary of 
State.  The following table 2 shows the Government’s threshold and 
assessment periods (which are different for speed and quality) and the 
targets which should be met. 

  

Page 41



Table 2 Government’s Planning Performance Threshold and 
Assessment Periods 
 

Measure 
and type of 
Application  

 

2019 Threshold 
and Assessment 
Period  

 

Spelthorne’s 
Performance 
2019 

2020 
Threshold and 
Assessment 
Period 

Spelthorne’s 
Performance 
2020 

Speed of 
major 
Development  
 

60%  
(October 2017 to 
September 2019)  
 

96% 
 

60%  
(October 2018 to 
September 
2020) 
 

100% 
(October 2018 to 
June 2020) 
 
 

Quality of 
major 
Development  
 

10%  
(April 2017 to 
March 2019) 

3.7%* 
 

10%  
(April 2018 to 
March 2020) 

1.8% 
 

Speed of non-
major 
Development  
 

70%  
(October 2017 to 
September 2019)  
 

93% 
 

70%  
(October 2018 
to September 
2020)  
 

93% 
(October 2018 to 
June 2020) 
 

Quality of non-
major 
Development  
 

10%  
(April 2017 to 
March 2019)  
 

0.6%* 
 

10%  
(April 2018 to 
March 201)  
 

0.6% 

 
*Provisional.  Final figures dependent upon any appeal decisions received by 
31/12/2020. 
 
1.7 Based on the data above, Spelthorne is continuing to perform well, 

although the quality of major decisions still requires particularly close 
monitoring due to the significantly lower proportion of major 
applications received. 

 
 
 

Page 42



 
 

Planning Committee 
 

14 October 2020 

 
 

Planning Appeals Report – V2.0 ISSUED 
  
  

List of Appeals Submitted between 10 August 2020 and 30 September 2020 
  
 
 

Planning 
Application / 
Enforcement 
Number 
 

 
Inspectorate 
Ref. 

 
Address 

 
Description 

 
Appeal Start 
Date 

18/01729/FUL APP/Z3635/W/20/3255055 35 High Street, 
Stanwell, 
TW19 7LJ 

Erection of 2 no.2 bedroom semi-
detached houses together with 
associated parking following 
demolition of existing building. 

11/08/2020 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



Planning 
Application / 
Enforcement 
Number 
 

 
Inspectorate 
Ref. 

 
Address 

 
Description 

 
Appeal Start 
Date 

19/00063/ENF APP/Z3635/C/20/3257865 1A Priory Stables, 
Chertsey Road, 
Shepperton 

 18/08/20201 

20/00588/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3257786 7 Vereker Drive, 
Sunbury on Thames, 
TW16 6HQ 

Erection of part two storey part single 
storey rear extension. partial 
conversion of garage to habitable 
space with new roof over and single 
storey side infill element. 

25/08/20202 

20/00640/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/32585843 
APP/Z3635/W/20/3259478 

102 Windmill Road, 
Sunbury on Thames, 
TW16 7HB 

The creation of a vehicular crossover. 30/08/20204 
15/09/2020 

20/00837/CPD APP/Z3635/X/20/3258568 18 Glebe Road, 
Staines upon Thames, 
TW18 1BX 

Certificate of Lawfulness for the 
proposed development of a single 
storey detached outbuilding. 

01/09/20205 

 
1 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 
2 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 
3 This seems to be a duplicate for the appeal APP/Z3635/D/20/3258584 submitted on 30/08/2020 – PINS to confirm. 
4 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 
5 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 

P
age 44



Planning 
Application / 
Enforcement 
Number 
 

 
Inspectorate 
Ref. 

 
Address 

 
Description 

 
Appeal Start 
Date 

20/00591/RVC APP/Z3635/W/20/3257970 The Boathouse, 
Sandhills Meadow, 
Shepperton, 

TW17 9HY 

Variation of condition 9 (relating to 
the permitted use) of PA ref 
04/01184/FUL for the erection of the 
boat house, to allow up to 20% of the 
showroom space to be used for the 
fitting out, storage and sale of camper 
vans as shown on site location plan 
received on 29.05.2020. 

03/01/20206 

20/00544/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3258989 18 Junction Road, 
Ashford, 
TW151 NQ 

Erection of side extension with a 
gable end element that would have a 
similar height as the bungalow, the 
erection of a single storey rear 
extension and loft conversion 
including the installation of a 2 no 
rear facing dormers and 5 no 
rooflights to the front slope to provide 
additional habitable accommodation 
(following demolition of existing 
conservatory and partial demolition of 

07/09/20207 

 
6 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 
7 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS.  PINS have notified the applicant that 
there are missing documents which must be submitted by 16 October 2020 or the application will be turned away. 
 

P
age 45



Planning 
Application / 
Enforcement 
Number 
 

 
Inspectorate 
Ref. 

 
Address 

 
Description 

 
Appeal Start 
Date 

a garage at the rear). Proposed new 
access via Junction Road. 

20/00436/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3257460 21 Gaston Bridge 
Road, Shepperton, 
TW17 8HH 

Erection of a part single storey, part 
two storey side and rear extension 
and single storey front extension 

15/09/2020 

20/00457/HOU APP/Z3635/W/20/3259643 10 Park Road, 
Ashford, 
TW15 1EY 

Retention of an outbuilding 
(retrospective) 

17/09/20208 

20/00690/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3259468 7 Conway Drive, 
Ashford, 
TW15 1RQ 

Erection of a two storey side and 
single storey front extension 
(following demolition of existing 
garage). 

17/09/20209 

20/00330/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3256884 19 Shortwood Avenue, 
Staines-upon-Thames, 
TW18 4JN 

Roof alterations to include a hip to 
gable extension, the installation of a 
rear dormer window and two roof 
lights to the front roof slope  

22/09/2020 

20/00527/HOU APP/Z3635/D/20/3256622 26 Preston Road, 
Shepperton, 
TW17 0BG 

Conversion of existing garage and 
outbuilding into an annex with 
associated alterations. 

23/09/2020 

 
8 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 
9 This is the appeal submission date to PINS but an official ‘Start Date’ has not yet been assigned to this appeal by PINS. 

P
age 46



Appeal Decisions Received 22 June 2020 - 30 September 2020 
 
 
 

Site 
 

Land East of Moor Lane, Stanwell, Staines-upon-Thames, TW19 
6EG 

Enforcement 
Reference: 
 

18/00030/ENF 

Breach: 
 

Without planning permission, the making of a material change of use 
of the land from open Green Belt land to a mixed use comprising the 
following unauthorised uses. (1) storage of motor vehicles and 
vehicle parts (2) the stationing of a caravan (3) storage of plant 
machinery (4) other storage purposes including but not limited to the 
storage of other paraphernalia and general rubbish 

Appeal 
Reference: 
 

APP/Z3635/C/19/3225626 

Appeal Decision 
Date: 
 

22 June 2020 

Inspector’s 
Decision 
 

Enforcement Notice quashed. 

Inspector’s 
Comments: 

On the Notice, the “land” was described as “open Green Belt land”.  
The Inspector stated that this was not a correct description of a use 
of land. 
On the Notice, it was alleged a mixed use was taking place, 
including “the stationing of a caravan”, the Inspector stated that this 
was not a use. 
The Inspector concluded that he was not able to correct the notice 
under the powers available to him in section 176(1) of the Town & 
Country Planning Act and therefore the Notice was quashed. 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Planning Application No. 19/01360/FUL - Laleham Park Pavilion, Laleham, TW18 1SS
	Planning Application No. 19/01360/FUL - Report - Laleham Park Pavilion, Laleham.
	Planning Application No. 19/01360/FUL - Appendices - Laleham Park Pavilion, Laleham.

	5 Planning Development Manager Performance Report
	6 Planning Appeals Report

